
Mayor and City Council of Cumberland  
 

Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 
Councilman Seth D. Bernard 
Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 
Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 
Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

City Administrator Jeffrey D. Rhodes 
City Solicitor Michael S. Cohen 

City Clerk Marjorie A. Woodring 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

AGENDA  

M&CC Work Session 

57 N. Liberty Street, Cumberland, MD 21502 

 

DATE:    January 07, 2020 

TIME:     4:00 PM 

 

 

I. 4:00 PM - Convene in open Work Session 

II. Review of the January 7, 2020, public meeting agenda  

III. Adjournment 

  



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

II. Review of the January 7, 2020, public meeting agenda  

  



Mayor and City Council of Cumberland  
 

Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 
Councilman Seth D. Bernard 
Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 
Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 
Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

City Administrator Jeffrey D. Rhodes 
City Solicitor Michael S. Cohen 

City Clerk Marjorie A. Woodring 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

AGENDA  

M&CC Regular Meeting 

Council Chambers, 57 North Liberty St., Cumberland, MD 

 

DATE:    January 07, 2020 

 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

1. 4:15 p.m. - Convene in open session for the purpose of closing the meeting for an executive 

session pursuant to Section 3-305 (b) (7) of the General Provisions Article of the Annotated Code 

of Maryland to receive legal advice regarding several items of proposed legislation, to receive 

legal advice regarding certain issues pertaining to regulatory requirements of the Department of 

Environmental Protection and the PA Public Utility Commission, and to receive legal advice 

regarding pending liability claims  

2. Executive Session 

OPEN SESSION 

1. 6:15 p.m. - Reconvene in regular open session 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Statement of Closed Meeting 

1. Summary Statement of closed meeting held January 7, 2019 

Presentations 

1. Carver Community Center Overview 

Director's Reports 

(1) Engineering 

Engineering Division monthly report for November, 2019  

(2) Utilities - Treatment Plants 

Utilities - Treatment Plants monthly report for November 2019 



Approval of Minutes 

 1. Approval of the Executive Session Minutes of October 8, 2019, and the Work Session 

 and Special Public Meeting Minutes of October 22, 2019 

New Business 

(A) Orders (Consent Agenda) 

Order 26,584 - authorizing execution of Change Order No.1 with First Fruits Excavating, Inc. 

for City project "Cumberland Street Retaining Wall (24-18-M)" in the increased value of 

$33,280, bringing the new contract value to $152,530 and providing an additional 60 

calendar days on the project timeline 

Order 26,585 - authorizing execution of Change Order No. 6 with Leonard S. Fiore, Inc. for 

City project "Phase I CSO Storage Facility at WWTP (01-10-WWTP)" to provide for an 

additional 113 calendar days of work time with no increase to the current contract price 

of $26,364,856.88 

Order 26,586 - accepting the bid of Harbel, Inc. for City project "Koon Dam Sidewalk Repairs 

– Phase 3" (38-19-BR) in the estimated unit cost of $82,637.00, to provide for the 

replacement of overhang and enclosed sidewalk on the Koon Dam Bridge 

Order 26,587 - declaring a 2011 International Ambulance (VIN: 3HAMNAAL5BL408030) as 

surplus equipment and authorizing it for sale or trade-in 

Order 26,588 - authorizing Acting Chief of Police Chuck Ternent to accept a FY20 GOCCP 

Police Recruitment & Retention Grant in the amount of $24,000 for the purchase of 

recruitment media, pay incentives to officers for successful candidate referrals, and 

signing bonuses for successful academy trainees 

Public Comments 

All public comments are limited to 5 minutes per person 

Adjournment  

  



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Engineering Division monthly report for November, 2019  

  



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Order Project No. Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 
By

Date of 
Update

2008 05-08-S Evitts Creek CSO Upgrades Phase 
III (gravity sewer under railroad)

Replacement of CSO line connecting 
Evitts Creek Pump Station effluent with 
gravity line that parallels the Canal 
Towpath.  Said gravity line is being 
replaced under project 17-03-S(1).

Design NO CHANGE  This project has been complicated because of 
location of the sewer lines deep under the CSX Yards. The 
project has not been funded through MDE which will prevent 
us from moving forward. Engineering will continue to apply for 
funds and present this project at PACE until it is funded.

RLS 5/15/2019

2010 01-10-WWTP CSO Storage Facility At WWTP CSO storage and handling facility in 
accordance with LTCP

Construction UPDATE Contractor continues to backfill the storage structure 
and work on the pump house. Mechanical and electrical 
systems inside the tank are ramping up. Substantial 
completion is projected for mid-February 2020.

RLS 10/9/2019

2013 1-13-FPM Flood Control System Concrete 
Repairs

Repairs to various points of FCS system 
per USACOE inspection

Design NO CHANGE - Project is still on hold pending MDE review of 
EAP for Dry Run. A grant application was submitted for the 
project through MDE will hear results in May 2020.  
Additionally, started USACE Section 408 request for floodwall 
extensions.

MDI 10/1/2019

2013 12-13-FPM Flood Control Encroachment Tree 
Project

Removal of Trees along Flood Wall and 
Levees per requirements of US Army 
Corps of Engineers specifications (See 
also Project 2-17-FPM)

Complete UPDATE project complete KAR 12/23/2019

2014 04-14-WWTP Sludge Screening Study/Design Study to select the best alternative to 
keep rags out of the recently cleaned and 
modified digester because the 
modifications will make it impossible to 
revive rags in the future.

Design NO CHANGE Need/Benefit of the project is being reevaluated, 
and for now the project is on hold.   Design is complete and the 
project will remain on this report for the time being.

RLS 4/2/2018

2014 13-14-M Mechanic Street Access Road 
Improvement Project

Repaving and ADA ramp improvements 
to the section Mechanic Street from I-68 
to Bedford Street.  Includes 
improvements to the block of Bedford 
Street from N. Centre to N. Mechanic 
Street and Baltimore Street to the Bridge.  

Construction UPDATE Paving is substanitally complete. The contractor had 
to reconstruct several of the ADA ramps.

JRD 12/16/2019

2014 19-14-M Greene Street Complete Street Plan Planning Study for Greene Street Planning NO CHANGE - The  Design Report from Alta Planning + 
Design was submitted and presented to the Mayor and City 
Council.   The plan to start work on Construction Funding 
Applications has been delayed because of the Baltimore Street 
Project, which would have been competing for the same funds.  
This project still needs to be done and should be a priority in 
the future. 

RLS 6/1/2017

2015 9-15-M Potomac River Walk The Study Phase of this project is being 
done through the Cumberland MPO and 
consists of a Walk / Trail for pedestrians 
and bikes along the Potomac River 
between Wills Creek and the YMCA

Study NO CHANGE -This project has been turned over to Canal 
Place.  Engineering Services for Design were received.  
Recommendation from the committee was to award to CEC.

KAR 8/9/2019

                2015 18-15-S CSO Water Quality Analysis Base line data collection for analysis of 
future CSO needs after CSO Storage is 
on line.

Planning NO CHANGE Project continues. Stream sampling ongoing on 
a monthly basis pre storage and post storage. Three staff were 
certified for sampling in April.

RJK 11/4/2019

Capital Projects December 1, 2019

Page 1 of 5
12/23/2019



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Order Project No. Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 
By

Date of 
Update

Capital Projects December 1, 2019

2015 19-15-M WWTP & Collection System Asset 
Management Plan

Development of an Asset Management 
Plan

Planning UPDATE   Asset Management Program/Capital Improvement 
implementation. Dashboard development and Workforce app 
beiginning to be used. Working on  Survey 123 and Collector.

RJK 11/4/2019

2015 23-15-M Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) 
Modernization and Implementation

Update FIRMs and the Floodplain 
Ordinance, and conduct an outreach to 
the community to apprise landowners of 
the impact of those changes.

Planning NO CHANGE - The Letter of Final Determination date is now 
October, 2018, with a projected effective date of April, 2019.

PJD 1/3/2019

2016 12-16-M Baltimore Street Access 
Improvement - Final Design

The purpose of the New Baltimore Street 
Town Center project is to reopen and 
improve Baltimore Street, which is 
currently configured as a pedestrian mall, 
to vehicular traffic while maintaining 
elements of the mall.

Design UPDATE EADS has submitted their 30% design to MDOT 
SHA for review. EADS has resumed working on the utility 
design as they wait for SHA comments of first submission. The 
next drawing submission is scheduled for late February.

RLS 10/9/2019

2016 17-16-M Stage Renovations at Liberty Street 
Stage

Replace wood stage with Concrete Design NO CHANGE - This project would be unnecessary if the 
Baltimore Street Access project is executed. The project will 
remain on this list until the Baltimore Street project moves to 
construction.

RLS 5/15/2019

2016 18-16-BR John J. McMullen, Bridge No. A-C-01 
Repairs

Bridge Repair Design UPDATE - This project is being placed on hold due to needs at 
other bridges. This project is expected to move forward in 
FY21 with State Aid Funds.

RLS 10/9/2019

2016 19-16-S 78" Parallel Pipeline from Mill Race to 
CSO

78" Pipeline to CSO tank in accordance 
with Consent Decree

Design UPDATE - NEPA work continues. WRA has provided their final 
design proposal and schedule for the project. The proposal is 
on the 10/15 M&CC agenda for approval, pending MDE 
approval.

RLS 10/9/2019

2017 2-17-FPM Flood Control Encroachment removal 
Project

The City as the Local Sponsor of the 
Flood Control Project is expected to 
maintain the easements along the Flood 
Control Project, however the area along 
Wills Creek and other areas were never 
given any comments until the Corps of 
Engineers standards changed.  
Completion of this project is necessary to 
allow the City to get a Satisfactory rating 
on its annual Flood Control Inspections.

Planning NO CHANGE - This project has been delayed because of 
other work, but must be done.  A tree removal project has 
been bid out and a contractor selected to do the work of 
removing trees in the encroachment area.

RLS 7/11/2018

2017 3-17-M Route 51 Bridge 12" Waterline 
Replacement

Replace water line on bridge as part of 
SHA Bridge Deck Project

Construction NO CHANGE -  The contract for the bridge replacement has 
been awarded but the water line is not expected to be replaced 
until FY21 due to construction phasing. 

RLS 5/15/2019

2017 8-17-M Baseline Water Quality Sampling 
Evitts Creek Water Company

Western Pennsylvania Conservancy to 
provide detailed technical and scientific 
consulting to the ECWC including: Habitat 
Characterization and Baseline Water 
Quality Sampling.

Construction NO CHANGE  Fall sampling took place 10/24. RJK 1/4/2019

2017 18-17-M Maryland Avenue Development This is not and Engineering Project, but 
included here to cover future department 
work with the development.

Design NO CHANGE- The department is supporting Cumberland 
Gateway LLC with historical records and will review stormwater 
design in the future.

RLS 5/15/2019

2017 19-17-M Recycle Coach App Smart phone app for recycling schedules Planning NO CHANGE RJK 8/9/2019

Page 2 of 5
12/23/2019



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Order Project No. Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 
By

Date of 
Update

Capital Projects December 1, 2019

2017 20-17-WFP Return on Environment Plan Bedford County Comp Plan - Optional 
localized study

Study NO CHANGE RJK 8/9/2019

2017 21-17-PSB Public Safety Building Underground 
Storage Tank Removal

Heating Oil Underground Storage Tank 
(UST) - Not in use/reviewing removal 
option

Complete UPDATE Tank abandoned 10/17/2019 by TRIAD. RJK 12/23/2019

2017 24-17-S Investigation of Floodwall Underdrain 
Leak at Valley Street Bridge

Ascertain the source of the sewage that is 
leaking into the floodwall under drain 
noted at an under drain box about 90 feet 
upstream of the Valley Street Bridge, and 
develop a plan and cost estimate to effect 
repairs.

Planning NO CHANGE - No flow has been seen in manhole, waiting for 
Will's Creek water level to lower to reinspect. Leak appears to 
have been addressed by removing Burgmeier Septic. The 
underdrain pump has been removed and not odor is being 
detected. The situation will continue to be evaluated.

RLS 5/15/2019

2017 29-17-UTIL VOID See 19-15-M VOID
2017 30-17-WWTP 40 CFR 441 Compliance - Dental 

Dischargers
Collection of 1-time compliance reports 
from dental offices that remove amalgam. 

Planning UPDATE Eighteen (18) dental offices have returned their 1-
time compliance report to date.  Dental offices have until July 
2020 to comply with this new Federal regulation.

RJK 11/4/2019

2017 31-17-W Decatur Street 24" Crosstown Water 
Main Replacement

Prior to designing the water main 
replacement a more detailed Water Model 
analysis of the City's system will be done 
to make sure the issues are being 
properly addressed.  Design will follow.

Design UPDATE Bennett Brewer and Associates are at 60% 
completion. The 60% documents were reviewed in December 
Contract documents are scheduled to be ready for MDE review 
in March 2020.

JRD 12/16/2019

2018 08-18-BR Cumberland Street Bridge 
Replacement

This project will replace the bridge 
structure.

Design UPDATE - MDOT issuesd Notice to Proceed to Jacobs/EBA 
on 10/4/19 for preliminary engineering work. A design kickoff 
meeting has been held and the consultant is working on 
organizing their subcontractors for data collection.

RLS 10/9/2019

2018 09-18-BR Baltimore Street Bridge Replacement This project will replace the bridge 
structure.

Design UPDATE - Temporary bridge repair work is complete. WTB will 
be submitting their next report in November as they continue 
through the federal process. The Design is expected to be 
completed in Fall of 2020

RLS 10/9/2019

2018 22-18-M Solid Waste and Recycling Collection Contract documents for the FY20 garbage 
and recycling collection bid process

Planning NO CHANGE New schedule in effect!
Staff met with Burgmeier's Hauling on 9/18 for continued 
satisfactory services.  Press Release planned for getting trash 
out early and how to contact City/Burgmeiers. 

RJK 9/30/2019

2018 23-18-WWTP  FY 2019 MDE Energy Grant
Optimization of the Aeration System 
at the WRF

Application through MDE for energy 
grants for WWTP or WFPs

Construction UPDATE All work in bio-reactors 1 and 2 are complete.  
Contractors are working on the last bio-reactor as well as the 
inlet and discharge piping for blowers 1 and 2

MDI 12/16/2019

2018 24-18-M Cumberland Street Retaining Wall This project includes the installation of a 
retaining wall and the replace of the 
closed portion of sidewalk along 
Cumberland Street at Market Street. Also 
included is the installion of ADA compliant 
curb/sidewalk ramps.

Construction UPDATE Work has been delayed due to the poor subgrade 
condition at the site of the proposed wall, and a delay in the 
delivery of the precast concrete drainage structures.

JRD 12/16/2019

2018 25-18-BR SHA Project: Replacement of MD 51 
Bridge Deck

Replace the water line under the industrial 
blvd bridge under a MDOT bridge 
rehabilitation project

Construction Refer to project 3-17-W RLS 10/11/2018

2018 26-18-M Ridgeley Levee System Certification

Page 3 of 5
12/23/2019



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Order Project No. Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 
By

Date of 
Update

Capital Projects December 1, 2019

2018 29-18-W Smouses Mill Pumping Station 
Upgrades

Replace existing pumps and VFD's, install 
a back-up generator, remove hydro-
pneumatic tanks

Construction UPDATE - C&T has demoed existing tanks and is planning 
pipe install while awaiting new pump system to arrive (Xmas).  
Generator and new fencing has been installed.

MDI 12/16/2019

2018 30-18-SWM WMHS Crisis Resource Center Project involving SWM review  Replaces 
an existing building with a new facility.

Design NO CHANGE - Pre-construction meeting was held on 9/23.  
Belt has demoed existing structure and will be working on this 
project for next 6 months. City only assisting with SWM.

MDI 11/4/2019

2018 31-18-WFP Pine Ridge Water & PUC Rate 
Issues

2018 32-18-FPM Rehabilitation Assistance for Flood 
Damages to Flood Risk Management 
Projects

Request USACE to make repairs or 
provide funding to address flood control 
issues

NO CHANGE - The USACE has denied financial support due 
to the flood control being in an unacceptable condition. The 
City is looking to enter the SWIF program to receive aid to get 
financial support for construction.

RLS 10/12/2018

2018 33-18-RE Constitution Park Marble Courts Installation of marble courts, adjoining 
pavilion, and upgrades to nearby comfort 
station in Constitution Park

Construction Bidding UPDATE - Contract Documents for Phase II will be completed 
by mid-December, bid opeing is anticipated by mid-January. 
Phase II includes a concrete slab around 2 of the Marble 
courts to make them ADA compliant, an ADA compliant walk to 
the slab, and renovations of the restrooms in Grove 4.

JRD 12/16/2019

2018 37-18-SWM Columbia Gas Line - Walnut Street
2018 38-18-BR Lake Gordon Road Bridge 

Replacement
PennDOT project Construction NO CHANGE - Project has been award and notice to proceed 

issued. Construction slated for June-October. Not a City 
Project.

RLS 5/15/2019

2018 40-18-WWTP Dry Run Detention Dam and Culvert 
Emergency Action Plan

Engineering Services to perform Dam 
Breach Analysis for EAP Execution

Study NO CHANGE - Breach analysis is complete and awaiting 
approval from MDE before submitting the full EAP to MDE.

RLS 8/5/2019

2018 43-18-BR Fayette Street Bridge Replacement This project will replace the bridge 
structure.

Complete NO CHANGE - Studies have been returned and submitted to 
CSX negotations.

RLS 8/5/2019

2018 44-18-BR Washington Street Bridge 
Replacement

This project will replace the bridge 
structure.

Complete NO CHANGE - Studies have been returned and submitted to 
CSX negotations.

RLS 8/5/2019

2019 5-19-M Virginia Ave Lot Demolition Remove two structures and retaining 
walls at 6, 8 and 10 Virginia Ave.

Complete NO CHANGE - The grading plan has been approved by ASCD 
and the project has been turned over to Code Enforcement for 
demolition

RLS 8/5/2019

2019 7-19-WFP Filter Building Pilot Study Perform a study to evaluate the potential 
to replace current filter building with a new 
membrane/GAC building in the future. 
The City is required to perform a pilot 
study to validate the technology we are 
proposing to use.

Study NO CHANGE - The permit to perform the study has been 
submitted to PADEP. Awaiting approval before starting the 
study.

RLS 8/5/2019

2019 8-19-WFP New Inlet Screens for Gate House Design UPDATE Public Water Supply Minor Permit Amendment 
application submitted to the PA DEP 7/26/19.  Awaiting 
approval. Detailed specifications have been inserted into the 
City's specification package (awiting project information to 
complete the specfications (contract durations, etc.)

JRD 11/5/2019

2019 10-19-M Residential Grass Mowing Contract for mowing the residential 
properties within the City Limits which 
include blighted properties and recent 
demos. 

Construction UPDATE- Contract underway KAR 11/4/2019

Page 4 of 5
12/23/2019



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Order Project No. Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 
By

Date of 
Update

Capital Projects December 1, 2019

2019 11-19-M Non Residential Grass Mowing Contract for mowing the Commercial and 
Public Owned Properties within the City 
Limits.  To include water tanks, City Hall, 
Public Safety and several others.

Construction UPDATE-Contract Underway KAR 11/4/2019

2019 13-19-M Center City Parking Garage 
Improvements

Various improvements to the Center City 
Parking Garage including ADA 
improvements, wayfinding and signage 
upgrades, and painting

Construction UPDATE - Kiosks and gates have been ordered and received, 
installation is in progress. Security cameras are still in 
progress, MIS is working out specifications. DDC/Arts Council 
received their signage, it will be installed by the Street Dept. 

JAT 12/16/2019

2019 14-19-M WWTP RMP Compliance Services RMP Compliance for OSHA 29 CFR 1910 Planning UPDATE RMP program updated to comply with OSHA 29 CFR 
1910 for chlorine and sulfer dioxide storage on site.  New 
(RED) Binder at WWTP and my office.  

Training and LEPC coordination still needs completed. 

RJK 11/4/2019

2019 18-19-M Nemacolin Avenue Survey Survey of Nemacolin Avenue between 
Longwood Avenue and Richwood Avenue

Planning UPDATE The final Plat and CAD draings have been recieved 
by the City.

JRD 11/5/2019

2019 27-19-M Bellevue Street Sidewalk Upgrades Removal and installation of new concrete 
sidewalks from Baltimore Ave to Fulton 
St.  This will include the installation of 
ADA Accessible ramps.

Construction UPDATE- Award was made to Excavating Assoicates.  Notice 
to Proceed was issuded .

KAR 12/23/2019

2019 32-19-M Brownfields Application 2019 Information Regarding Brownfields and 
potential projects within the city.

Study UPDATE-Staff attended Brownfields Boot-Camp held by MDP 
9/24 

MEA 9/30/2018

2019 35-19-WWTP Denite Filters Mudwell Mixing System This project will evaluate and design a 
system for the mudwell tanks at the ENR 
to maintain solid suspense, prior to 
pumping the filtrate back to the head of 
the treatment plant.

Design UPDATE- Design bid was awarded to GD&F on 10/11/19.  
Kickoff meeting was held at WWTP on 10/15/19.  Design 
progress meeting was held on 11/19/19.  GD&F working on 
finalizing design options.

MDI 12/16/2019

2019 38-19-BR Koon Dam Sidewalk Repairs Phase 3 Third phase of repairs, following 28-18-
BR and 17-18-BR. Elevated sidewalk 
slabs need to be replaced.

Planning UPDATE- Project is out for bid.  Bids due on 12/17/19. MDI 12/16/2019

Page 5 of 5
12/23/2019



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Utilities - Treatment Plants monthly report for November 2019 

  



TREATMENT PLANTS

MONTHLY UTILITY REPORT

NOVEMBER 2079

AVERAGE DAILY PRODUCTION - WFP

AVERAGE DAILY PRODUCTION . WRF

(o1t

PAST 72 MONTHS

BRIEF LIST of EVENTS

1.OO% COMPLIANCE WITH ALL FEDERAL & STATE REGULATIONS

NEW COMPUTER MAINTENANCE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM ,,eMAINT,, IMPLEMENTATION AT BOTH TREATMENT FACILITIES

WS$} SMOUSSE MILL PUMPING STATION BEING UPGRADED WITH NEW PUMPS, GENERATOR, PRESSURE TANK

ttrF$) DEVELOPED PLAN FOR PHASE 2 DISTRTBUTED CONTROL SYSTEM UPGRADE

DEVELOPED PLAN FOR DISSOLVED AIR FLOTATION SKIMMER UPGRADES

MET WITH GDF ENGINEERS TO EVALUATE MUDWELL MIXING

WORKING WITH MARSHALL RUBY TO REPAIR ROTATING SCREENS AT EVITTS CREEK LIFT STATION

PLANT ELECTRICIANS RECALIBRATED AND REPROGRAMMED ALL COMBINED SEWER OVERFLOW SITES

tt

=o
rl
rl

(t
ao{{
E

=o{
r,l

t
eo{:i
E

o
H
o')
t\
H

q6($9

PAST 72 MONTHS



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

1. Approval of the Executive Session Minutes of October 8, 2019, and the Work Session and 

Special Public Meeting Minutes of October 22, 2019 

  





1 
 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
WORK SESSION 
City Hall Council Chambers 

57 N. Liberty Street 

Cumberland, MD 21502 

 

Tuesday, October 22, 2019 

4:38 p.m. 

 

PRESENT:  Raymond M. Morriss, President; Council Members: Seth Bernard, Richard Cioni, 

Eugene Frazier, and Laurie Marchini.    

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Michael S. Cohen, City Solicitor; Marjorie Woodring, City Clerk; Police Captain 

Chuck Ternent; Paul Kelly, Executive Director-CEDC; Matt Miller, Economic Development 

Specialist 

 

I. LOITERING 

 

 Mayor Morriss discussed the reasons for the Work Session, mentioning the downtown issues of 

code enforcement, loitering, people’s behavior, and the City looking for ways to make the 

downtown safe and family friendly.  He stated some issues have started to get worse lately, adding 

that a lot of the people downtown are disenfranchised, and the City is trying to figure out ways to 

get them the help they need, while acknowledging that people have certain rights and the City 

needs to be cognizant of that.  He asked for comments from the people attending the Work Session 

regarding solutions for making the downtown safer, as well as ways to make the downtown 

businesses successful.  Mayor Morriss then opened the floor to Council, who were all in agreement 

to let Captain Ternent speak first.   

 

Captain Ternent stated that the CPD also shares the M&CC’s concerns, saying that the problem 

comes and goes, sometimes getting worse, sometimes getting better.  He advised on facts about the 

downtown homeless population, which is currently about 25 regular people, with 10-12 of the 

people being downtown since the beginning.  He spoke about the downtown civilian patrols, the 

foot and bicycle patrols, and said they have written both municipal and criminal citations, with 68 

alcohol citations written during the last year.  He stated that though they are cited and fined, the 

indigent people downtown usually get out of court due to their lack of money.  Captain Ternent 

added that with the activities of pan-handling and soliciting, the CPD needs witnesses, saying that 

although panhandling are not against the law, aggressive panhandling is and the CPD can take 

action, but needs witnesses to help at court.  He stated that they cannot take action from anonymous 

callers.  He also stated that the CPD cannot take action on the way people look, and that they have to 

be careful in discriminating against the poor or homeless.  He did add, however, that the CPD has 

zero tolerance for alcohol consumption downtown. 

 

Captain Ternent spoke about the CPD and social services teaming together to try to get some of the 

people help and get them off the street, and using referral services, but added that doesn’t always 

work because you can’t force people to get help.  He spoke about the main areas where the CPD 



2 
 

knows the regulars, downtown and Canal Place, and said the police department does go undercover 

to try to pick up some of the people dealing in solicitation or prostitution. 

 

The Captain spoke about the CPD’s taxing work load, the shortage of police officers across the entire 

country, and said the CPD is still trying to get up to speed.  He mentioned officers being assigned to 

special events, and stated that they do require officers assigned to the downtown to get out and 

walk the area.  Captain Ternent mentioned looking into getting the non-working surveillance 

cameras downtown working again, and said at peak there were 38 cameras around the City, but few 

work these days.  He stated that he would support getting the cameras fixed, especially downtown, 

and said that even though they can’t be monitored 24/7, as word gets around it would help deter 

criminal activity. 

 

II. COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS 

 

Ryan Brenneman spoke about the availability of crowd-source cameras that can tap into Nest, a law 

enforcement resource, where downtown businesses acquire cameras for their storefronts and work 

together with the CPD.  He added that officers would be able to pull the information up on their cell 

phones.  There was discussion on if downtown businesses would be able to get a grant to buy high-

quality Nest cameras in bulk, and the possibility of downtown design money being available. 

 

John Buchanan, commercial insurance agent and responsible for CBIZ properties on Baltimore 

Street, advised that they recently installed cameras and worked with the CPD when they had a 

break in.  He stated that their camera system is first-class, is set-up to a 180 degree view, and said 

they would share information from their IT Department with the City.  Mr. Buchanan also discussed 

his employees concerns with the parklet at the end of the mall by Mechanic Street, and spoke about 

the plan to remove it, saying they’ve had a history of problems there – open containers, trash, 

clothing left there - and said his employees are scared about what’s going on downtown.  He also 

stated that the management at CBIZ is opposed to putting in bathrooms once the parklet is removed, 

saying that it will be a nuisance, and will continue to attract the disenfranchised.  Mayor Morriss 

advised that there has not been a final decision yet on bathrooms. 

 

Larry Jackson spoke about the area of Baltimore Street where his businesses are, saying that it’s like 

ground zero, and has gotten really rough.  He stated there are fights often and they have had to 

remove people from the music store 3 days in a row.  He added that he doesn’t want to make this a 

“poor” problem or mental health problem, saying that a lot of it is behavior problems.  He stated 

that the language used creates a menacing, intimidating situation for customers, more so than 

panhandling.  Mr. Jackson mentioned some ideas to Mr. Cohen and Mayor Morriss regarding 

leasing benches or planters to businesses to create private property.  The Mayor said he would look 

into it.  Mr. Jackson also spoke on the issue of ticketing tourists on bikes on the mall, and mentioned 

that parking needed to be free everywhere. 

 

Gail Hall, owner of Mountainside Bike Tours and The Inn on Decatur talked about tourists being a 

captive market, with bikers coming off the trail with no place to go.  She mentioned she has been 

sold out every night this past summer, and her customers are spending a lot of money downtown.  

She said that lately, though, she’s getting a lot of questions about safety.  She added that she no 



3 
 

longer lets her guests walk at night – she picks them up.  Ms. Hall stated that though Decatur Street 

has gotten better, there’s so much going down on the mall coming through to her street that it’s 

embarrassing.  Mayor Morriss agreed and said the extended area from the mall needs to be made 

safe as well, and understands what tourism brings to the community.  

 

Ryan Brenneman, owner of Allegany Media in the Lila Building, talked about the frequent shouting 

behavior on the mall, and stated that he has to go down and ask people to be quiet, because he is 

recording.  He said if Code Enforcement is not taking action, then we need to rethink what code 

enforcement is.  He stated that we need to think outside the box.  He also agreed that parking fees 

need to be abolished.  He added that we need ambassadors in the City more than code enforcement.  

Mayor Morriss said they will evaluate how code enforcement is being handled, and will discuss the 

parking aspect.  Mr. Buchanan and Ms. Saville discussed code enforcement as well and agreed with 

playing up the ambassador aspect and having the officers dress more like that, and mentioned the 

problem of code enforcement being cut off in the afternoon. 

 

A smoking ban for the downtown area was discussed, with Mayor Morriss advising that he has 

heard a lot about property owners downtown being in favor of it, although it would be difficult to 

enforce.  Mr. Cohen advised that smoking is not allowed in parklets downtown at any time. 

 

There was discussion regarding the overgrown trees on the mall, keeping the lights in the trees, the 

benches on the mall being taken out although the farmer’s market is requesting to keep them for 

their patrons, and loitering being prohibited at Rose’s. 

 

There was more discussion on a possible smoking ban, with Mr. Cohen advising that the DDC has 

the ability to pass its own rules and regulations.  He added that it would help if they would adopt 

their own smoking ban and post it so that code enforcement can help enforce it.  Mr. Cohen also 

spoke on the futility of bringing homeless folks into court, saying that officers can in fact keep taking 

away their addictions, whether it’s drugs or alcohol, which can be a deterrent to returning to the 

area.  Mr. Cohen also advised that when it comes to enforcing laws, police are reactionary.  He 

stated that it’s incumbent upon business and property owners to call the police when groups are 

congregating in front of businesses.  Mr. Cohen advised on the smoking ban at all parks and parklets 

in the City, and the hours they are closed.  He added that to be proactive, when you see people 

committing crimes, to step up and call, charge them, and be willing to come to court.   

 

There was discussion on creating a long term plan to get people the help they need, and utilizing 

them for community service in lieu of taking them to court and fining them when they have no 

ability to pay. 

 

Paul Kelly, CEDC Director, stated that there is a perceived issue downtown in terms of peoples’ 

behavior and not being a warm and inviting place.  He stated that in some instances it’s true, and the 

City needs to reverse that perception considering all the resources that are invested into 

redevelopment.  He suggested that the City’s marketing services have a survey taken of visitors 

from metropolitan areas, in terms of their perceived level of safety and feeling of welcome from the 

City, and have the same survey for local folks to see the different areas of concern.  Mr. Kelly also 

suggested gauging the City’s local health resources to figure out who all the players are, to see if 



4 
 

they are communicating, and if they have the resources to help the City with those folks that have 

slipped through the system, to those that just have no respect.  He stated that the CEDC has heard 

unanimously that people want an officer downtown – that just the appearance of an officer would 

deter most, if not all.  He added that the CEDC supports the City’s redevelopment efforts downtown 

and moving the Union Rescue Mission to give them a bigger opportunity to expand their services.  

He asked to please consider appointing or designating someone, perhaps a member of staff or an 

entity in the community, to own this issue and make it their problem, to attend meetings to talk 

about solutions, and not get sidetracked. 

 

Mayor Morriss agreed that the City needs an action plan, and stated that a lot of good ideas were 

mentioned this day.  Council thanked everyone for coming to the meeting and sharing their 

thoughts and concerns, agreed they need to work together to find answers, and said if the police 

need resources it’s the M&CC’s job to help find a way to make that happen.  Captain Ternent stated 

that more manpower would be great, and the Police Dept. intends to put a permanent officer 

downtown someday, when they get back to full staffing, but it won’t happen overnight.  He added 

that they are putting together a better recruitment and retention plan – get officers, keep officers.  He 

stated that he will try to put an officer downtown whenever possible, and mentioned to everyone 

again that if they see violations, please call them.  He also mentioned that he will look into the 

camera project. 

 

III. ADJOURNMENT 

 

With no further business at hand, the meeting adjourned at 5:57 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Marjorie A. Woodring 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

Minutes approved ___________________________ 

 

 



Mayor and City Council of Cumberland  
 

Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 
Councilman Seth D. Bernard 
Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 
Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 
Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

City Administrator Jeffrey D. Rhodes 
City Solicitor Michael S. Cohen 

City Clerk Marjorie A. Woodring 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

MINUTES  

M&CC Special Public Meeting 

City Hall, 57 N. Liberty Street, Cumberland, MD 21502 

 

DATE:    October 22, 2019 

 

 

I. 4:30 p.m. – Convene in Open Session 

II. Pledge of Allegiance 

III. Roll Call 

 PRESENT 

 Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 

 Councilman Seth Bernard 

 Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 

 Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 

 Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

 

 ALSO PRESENT: Marjorie Woodring, City Clerk; Michael S. Cohen, City Solicitor, Police 

 Captain Chuck Ternent 

IV. New Business 

(A) Orders (Consent Agenda) 

  Mayor Morriss reviewed the one item on the Consent Agenda, and called for questions or 

  comments.  Being none, motion to approve Order No. 26,550 was made by   

  Councilwoman Marchini, seconded by Councilman Frazier, and was passed on a vote of  

  5-0. 

 Order 26,550 - lifting the provisions of Section 11-113 of the City Code, entitled "Open 

Containers of Alcohol," in certain areas of the downtown beginning at 3:00 p.m. on 

October 26, 2109 and continuing through 2:00 a.m. on October 27, 2019, to 

accommodate the DDC sponsored Ghouley Pub Crawl 

V. Adjournment  

With no further business at hand, Mayor Morriss adjourned the meeting at 4:38 p.m. 



 

 Minutes approved on _______________________________ 

 

 Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor _________________________________ 

 

 ATTEST: Marjorie A. Woodring, City Clerk ___________________________________ 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,584 - authorizing execution of Change Order No.1 with First Fruits Excavating, Inc. 

for City project "Cumberland Street Retaining Wall (24-18-M)" in the increased value of 

$33,280, bringing the new contract value to $152,530 and providing an additional 60 

calendar days on the project timeline 

  



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,584                   DATE:    January 7, 2020_ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the City Administrator be and is hereby authorized to execute Change 

Order No. 1 with First Fruits Excavating, Inc., 407 Plum Run Road, Ridgeley, WV, 26753 

for City Project “Cumberland Street Retaining Wall” (24-18-M) in the increased amount 

of Thirty-three Thousand, Two Hundred Eighty Dollars and No Cents ($33,280.00), 

bringing the total contract amount to One Hundred Fifty-two Thousand, Five Hundred 

Thirty Dollars and No Cents ($152,530.00); and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that this Change Order provides for sixty (60) 

additional calendar days. 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 

First Fruits Contract Amount 

Original Contract Amount $119,250.00 

Change Order No. 1 $  33,280.00 

Total Contract Amount $152,530.00 

 





Council Agenda Summary  
Meeting Date: January 7, 2019 

Agenda Item Number:  

Key Staff Contact: John DeVault 

 

Item Title: 

Change Order No. 1 Cumberland Street Retaining Wall – First Fruits Excavating, Inc. (24-18-M) 

 

Summary: 

This Change Order is in the increased value of $33,280.00.  Original contract value was $119,250.00.  

With this additional work the new contract value is $152,530.00, with an additional 60 calendar days 

added.  This Change Order will allow for the installation of under-drain and will allow for some 

additional sidewalk work to be completed.   

  

 

Issues and Considerations: 

 

Fiscal Impact: 

Is this item budgeted?  Yes   □  No 

Budget: CDBG 

Value of award: $33,280.00 

If item is not budgeted, does the budget need to be appropriated?   □  Yes    □  No 

Is there grant funding being used?  □  Yes    x  No   

If grant funding is being used, does it require a City match?  □  Yes    x  No   

Match provisions: Enter Text Here 

Is this a sole source purchase?  □ Yes    x  No    (If so, attach department recommendation and approval 

from City Administrator.) 

  



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,585 - authorizing execution of Change Order No. 6 with Leonard S. Fiore, Inc. for 

City project "Phase I CSO Storage Facility at WWTP (01-10-WWTP)" to provide for an 

additional 113 calendar days of work time with no increase to the current contract price 

of $26,364,856.88 

  



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,585                     DATE:    January 7, 2020 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT the City Administrator be and is hereby authorized to execute Change 

Order No. 6 to the existing contract with Leonard S. Fiore, Inc., 5506 Sixth Avenue Rear, 

Altoona, PA, 16602, for City Project “Phase 1 CSO Storage Facility at WWTP” (01-10-

WWTP) to increase calendar days by One Hundred Thirteen (113) with no increase to 

the current contract price of Twenty-six Million, Three Hundred Sixty-four Thousand, 

Eight Hundred Fifty-six Dollars and Eighty-eight Cents ($26,364,856.88); and, 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED that this Change Order is contingent upon 

approval from the Maryland Department of the Environment. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 

 

Leonard S. Fiore, Inc.   01-10-WWTP Contract Price 

Original Contract Price $26,416,340.00 

Change Order No. 1 $0.00 

Change Order No. 2 $16,582.53 

Total Contract Price after CO 1 & 2 $26,432,922.53 

Change Order No. 3  “decrease” ($92,409.94) 

Change Order No. 4 $21,523.46 

Change Order No. 5  $2,820.83 

Change Order No. 6   “no increase” $0.00 

New Total Contract Price to-date $26,364,856.88 

 

Budget: 003.399CS.63000 



EJCDC
tNffiRS CVISI}ffi
DJCUtlgiiiS a0niMiTTE!

Change Order No. 6

Date of lssuance: December ll,2019
Owner: City of Cumberland, MD

Contractor: Leonard S. Fiore, lnc.

Engineer: Whitman, Requardt, and Associates, LLP

Project: Phase 1 CSO Storage Facility at the
Wastewater Treatment Plant

Effective Date: December It,20L9
Owner's Contract No.: 01-10-WWTP

Contractor's Project No.: CT-0365

Engineer's Project No.: 13993-003

Contract Name: Phase 1 CSO Storage Facility at the
Wastewater Treatment Plant

The Contract is modified as follows upon execution of this Change Order:

1) lncludes a non-compensable time extension of one hundred thirteen (1 13) calendar days.

Attochments: None.

[tne+ease] [Decrease] from previously approved Change

Orders No. 0 to No. 5 :

CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES

[note changes in Milestones if opplicable]
Original Contract Times:
SubstantialCompl etion: 760
Ready for Final Paymen t: 820

[lncrease] [ae"'ease] from previously approved Change

Orders No. 0 to No. 5 :

Substantial Compl etion: 206
Ready for Final Payment: 2OG

Contract Times prior to this Change Order:
Substantial Completion: 948
Ready for Final Paym ent: 1,008

[lncrease] [oeeease] of this Change Order:
Substantial Comp letion: 113

Ready for Final Payment: l-l-3

Contract Times with all approved Change Orders:

SubstantialComp letion: 1,061

Ready for Final Payment: 1,121

ACCEPTED: ACCEPTED

By:

owner (Authorized Signature) Contractor (Authorized Signature)
Title

Date

Date

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE

Original Contract Price

26,416,340.00s

s

$

s

$

{51,483.12)

Contract Price prior to this Change Order:

26,364,856.88

[me+eese] [o""*.*] of this Change Order:

nla

Contract Price incorporating this Change Order:

26.354.855.88

R

By

Title:
Date:

By:

Title

By

Engineer (if required)

/,crsr-ttAT€
ta ll\ I Zotq

Title

Date

Approved by Funding Agency (if
applicable)

EJcDc' c-941, Change order.
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee,

Page I of I

City Engineer
12/23/19



Council Agenda Summary  
Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

Agenda Item Number: Enter Text Here 

Key Staff Contact: Bobby Smith, Kim Root 

 

Item Title: 

Change Order No. 6 CSO Storage Construction   

 

Summary: 

Add 113 calendar days to the current project with Leonard S. Fiore, Inc.   

  

 

Issues and Considerations: 

 

Fiscal Impact: 

Is this item budgeted?  X Yes   □  No 

Budget: 003.399CS.63000 

Value of award: 26,364,856.88 

If item is not budgeted, does the budget need to be appropriated?   □  Yes    □  No 

Is there grant funding being used?  X  Yes    □  No   

If grant funding is being used, does it require a City match?  □  Yes    X  No   

Match 

provisions: 

 

Is this a sole source purchase?  □  Yes    X  No    (If so, attach department recommendation and 

approval from City Administrator.) 

  



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,586 - accepting the bid of Harbel, Inc. for City project "Koon Dam Sidewalk Repairs 

– Phase 3" (38-19-BR) in the estimated unit cost of $82,637.00, to provide for the 

replacement of overhang and enclosed sidewalk on the Koon Dam Bridge 

  



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,586                     DATE:    _January 7, 2020_ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

 

THAT, the bid from Harbel, Inc., 11521 Milnor Avenue, Cumberland, MD 21502, 

for City Project “Koon Dam Sidewalk Repairs-Phase 3 (38-19-BR) in the estimated unit 

cost of Eighty-two Thousand, Six Hundred Thirty-seven Dollars and No Cents 

($82,637.00) be and is hereby accepted; and, 

 BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that all other bids for this project be and are 

hereby rejected. 

 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 

 

 

 
 

Bids: 

Contractor Amount 

Harbel, Inc. $82,637.00 

MAR-ALLEN Concrete, Inc. $185,415.00 

 

Source of Funding:  002.299D.63000 

 





Council Agenda Summary  
Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

Agenda Item Number:  

Key Staff Contact: Matt Idleman 

 

Item Title: 

Award Koon Dam Sidewalk Repairs – Phase 3  

 

Summary: 

It is the Engineering Departments Recommendation to award City Project 38-19-BR Koon Dam 

Sidewalk Repairs – Phase 3 to the low responsive bidder Harbel, Inc in the estimate unit cost of 

$82,637.00.  One other bid was received from MAR-ALLEN Concrete, Inc in the estimate unit cost of 

$185,415.00. This phase of the project will be to replace approx. 350 LF of overhang sidewalk and 140 

LF of enclosed sidewalk on the Koon Dam Bridge.   

  

Issues and Considerations: 

 

Fiscal Impact: 

Is this item budgeted?  X Yes   □  No 

Budget: 002.299D.63000 

Value of award: $82,637.00 

If item is not budgeted, does the budget need to be appropriated?   □  Yes    □  No 

Is there grant funding being used?  □  Yes    x  No   

If grant funding is being used, does it require a City match?  □  Yes    x  No   

Match 

provisions: 

 

Is this a sole source purchase?  □  Yes    x  No    (If so, attach department recommendation and 

approval from City Administrator.) 

  



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,587 - declaring a 2011 International Ambulance (VIN: 3HAMNAAL5BL408030) as 

surplus equipment and authorizing it for sale or trade-in 

  



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,587                DATE:   January 7, 2020 
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland is the record owner of a 

certain vehicle that has been determined to be of no further value to the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council desire to dispose of said equipment; 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

CUMBERLAND, THAT, the following equipment is hereby declared to be surplus 

property and authorized for sale or trade-in: 

 

1. 2011 International Ambulance 

 VIN: 3HAMNAAL5BL408030 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 

 
 

 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,588 - authorizing Acting Chief of Police Chuck Ternent to accept a FY20 GOCCP 

Police Recruitment & Retention Grant in the amount of $24,000 for the purchase of 

recruitment media, pay incentives to officers for successful candidate referrals, and 

signing bonuses for successful academy trainees 

  



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,588                     DATE:     January 7, 2020_ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT the Interim Chief of Police be and is hereby authorized to accept a 

GOCCP Grant for FY20 entitled “Police Recruitment and Retention” in the amount of 

Twenty-four Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($24,000.00) for the period 07/01/2019 to 

06/30/2020, to assist in the purchase of recruitment media, and to help fund pay 

incentives to officers for successful candidate referrals and signing bonuses for 

successful academy trainees.  

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 
 

 

 

Grant: PRAR-2020-0006 

 































Council Agenda Summary  
Meeting Date: January 7, 2020 

Agenda Item Number: FY20 Police Recruitment & Retention Grant 

Key Staff Contact: Capt. Chuck Ternent 

 

Item Title: 

FY20 Police Recruitment & Retention Grant 

 

Summary: 

Authorize Captain Chuck Ternent, Interim Chief, to accept the FY20 Police Recruitment and Retention 

Grant in the amount of $24,000 awarded by the Governor’s Office for Crime Control and Prevention 

(GOCCP) who recognizes the state-wide shortage of police candidates and has offered funds to help local 

agencies recruit and retain police officers.  These funds will help fund recruitment media such as posters 

and videos as well as pay incentives for officers who refer successful candidates as well as and signing 

bonuses for officers who successfully complete academy training.   

  

Issues and Considerations: 

Enter Text Here 

Fiscal Impact: 

Is this item budgeted?   Yes   X  No 

Budget: $ 

Value of award: $24,000 

If item is not budgeted, does the budget need to be appropriated?   □  Yes    □  No 

Is there grant funding being used?   X Yes      No   

If grant funding is being used, does it require a City match?  □  Yes   X  No   

Match provisions: Enter Text Here 

Is this a sole source purchase?  □  Yes    □  No    (If so, attach department recommendation and approval 

from City Administrator.) 

  


	Top
	 Work Session Open
	II. Work Session - Agenda Review
	2020-01-07 M&CC Regular Meeting Packet Document

	III. Work Session- Adjourn
	Bottom

